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Dennis Hamilton House (Log) c. 1875
Foolesville vicinity, Jerusalem community

Frivate

This one and a half story log house was the home of
a “lack landowning family. Its twc rcom up and two down
floor plan and log construction reflected the marginal
pesition of this small landowning family between the
tenant families and larger landowning families, who
tended to live in frame houses, Three ongoing genepations
of Hamilton families have lived in this house until it
was abandonned in the late 1960's., This is one of the few
log houses of Black families that has survived in upper
western Montgomery County.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This log house is now abandoned and in ruinous condition.
Though its four walls still stand, its roof has collapsed completely,
and the floor given way above the cellar. Nonetheless, the
house is important since it is one of only two log houses that
remain in the Jerusalem community.

The house was built on the north side of the Jerusalem
Church Road. The area in front of the house down to the road
was cleared land, but now grown up in underbrush and trees. The
front of the house is completely overgrown with vines, making
photography of that side impossible.

Only the rear length was sufficiently visible to be photographed.
The following description of the site as it wee appeared during
occupancy, was provided by the oral informant, William Moore,
who was raised in the Jerusalem community and whose grandparents,
William and Maria Moore, were among the founders.

The facade of this one and a half story log house was the
southern length. It contained three bays, a door centrally
located, flanked by two windowswith 6 over 6 lights in a double
hung sash. The front entrance was sheltered by a shed porch,
about 10' long and 8' wide. The rear length contained a door
opposite the front one, and a window in the east room. The west
room had only the front window. Neither gable end had windows.
The pine logs were exposed, not covered with siding, and were
solidly chinked with a miscellancy of materials, including red
sandstone chips, probably from the Seneca quarry. The logs
were V-notched at the corners. There was no use of pegging or
posts to reinforce the walls, as was common in southern Maryland.

The interior contained two rooms down and two up. The front
door opened directly into the east room, which was the kitchen.,
Along the east gable end ascended a straight flight of stairs,
which were enclosed with a panel of tongue and groove siding.
Underneath the back of the stairs was a closet, as was common in
houses of this type. A brick stove flue ascended through the
middle of the house with openings into all four rooms for stove
pipes, indicating that all the rooms were heated by stoves.
According to William Moore, the west room downstairs was the
living room, more formal dining room, and bedroom for the parents,
a not unusual use of rooms. The two rooms upstairs were the bed-
rooms for the children. The partitions were narrow tongue and
groove siding throughout the house.

In terms of construction, the walls of the house were hewn
logs (hewn on the two lateral sides, only debarked on top and
bottom). The joists and rafters were milled boards, 2" x 6"s
and 2" x 4"s, Thus important parts of the structure were made of
purchased materials, in addition to that hand-made by local builders.
Inside, the walls were either exposed or covered with tongue and
groove siding like the stairway,--William Moore does not remember
for certain. Today the interior is sheathed with beaver board

anels. The frames of the back door and window were attached

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY with machine cut nails, with

machine cut heads (post 1830 type).
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This land was first acquired by a Black family in 1879
when Henrietta M. Hamilton purchased this 2.5 acre tract
from Leonidas Jones, the white landowner from whom most
Blacks purchasedtheir property in Jerusalem. (Deed EBP 19/410)
This house was probably built shortly thereafter since it is
only a small portion of a much larger tract of 25 acres that
Jones purchased from George Chiswell in 1865 (Deed, EBP 2/232),
The use of purchased materials such as the milled rafters and
joists, the presence of wood burning stoves for all four rooms,
and the four room plan indicate that it was not built earlier
as a slave house. It was therefore built most likely in 1879
or in the early 1880's near the time of purchase by the Hamiltons.

This one and a half story pine log house is an example
of the houses built and occupied by small landowning Black
families in the late 1800's. According to the 1900 census,
Dennis Hamilton was employed as a farm laborer an 1s house
reflects his marginal position between that of a landless
tenant and that of a larger landowning farmer in that the house
was not grand or stylish, but it had definite improvements
above the houses of landless farmers.,

According to Ora Lyles, three ongoing generations of the
Hamilton family have lived in this house up until the 1960's.
Dennis and Henrietta Hamilton raised their family of four
children in this house, in the late 1880's. Their son Wilson
and his wife Martha then raised their family here in the
20th century. In more recent decades, their son Joshua Hamilton
raised a large family of 8 to 10 children here, according
to Mrs. Lyles.

Wilson Hamilton's daughter, Henrietta, was raised in this
house and married Charles Moore. They nowlive in Henrv Wims'
house at The Pines which has also been surveyed.

For further history of this house, Henrietta H. Moore and
her brother Joshua Hamilton in Jerusalem should be interviewed.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Dennis Hamilton House Page 2
Physical Description
(continued)

The house did not stand alone. Behind the house were a hen
house (east) and well (east), and to the west a meat house, which
still remains. To the northeast of the house was a stable and lot
for the work horse. In front of the house was a vegetable garden.
The produce of the garden was stored in the cellar below the
east rooms Its entrance was from the outside, the east gable end.

To the east this property was bordered by the old Jerusalem
Church Road, and to the west by the farm of Dennis Hamilton's
cousin, Wallace Hamilton, and later of Wallace's son, Horace
Hamilton, according to william Moore.

NOTE: Due to condition of ruilnous house only the back
length could be photographed. The rest was overgrown
and the interlor was too dangerous to enter,
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